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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(dhef
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2005
Commission File Number 1-134

CURTISSWRIGHT CORPORATION
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @nart

Delaware 13-061297C
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatiot Identification No.)

4 Becker Farm Road
Roseland, New Jerst 07068
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)
(973) 59-4700
(Registrar’s telephone number, including area cc

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Sectid or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months anché® been subject to such filing requirements ferghst 90 days.

Yes X No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ine@selerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 offixehange Act).
Yes X No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiiiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share: 12,85G;02&:s (as of April 30, 2005).
Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per sharé4&46 shares (as of April 30, 2005).
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C URTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Research and development exper
Selling expense
General and administrative expen

Environmental remediation and
administrative expenst

Pension expense, r

(Gain) loss on sale of real estate and
fixed assets

Operating incom:

Other income (expense), r
Interest expense

Earnings before income tax
Provision for income taxes

Net earning:

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Dividends per share
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic
Diluted

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

(UNAUDITED)
(In thousands except per share data)

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
$ 258,48 $ 214,93
172,71t 143,33t
85, 76¢ 71,59t
10,22¢ 8,21:
16,92 12,60+
33,46¢ 25,24¢

83 24C

50C 40
(2,919 87
27,47¢ 25,16
(124 (402)
(4,309 (2,265)
23,05: 22,49¢
8,52¢ 6,881

$ 14,52 15,60¢
$ 0.6¢ 0.7¢
$ 0.67 0.74
$ 0.0¢ 0.0¢
21,51 20,88:
21,81« 21,20¢




C URTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Receivables, ne

Inventories, ne

Deferred tax assets, r

Other current assets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, |
Prepaid pension cos

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, r

Other assets

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Shor-term debi
Dividends payabli
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Income taxes payab
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term deb
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Accrued pension and other postretirement beneits
Long-term portion of environmental resen
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, $1 par val
Class B common stock, $1 par va
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Unearned portion of restricted stc
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Less: Cost of treasury stock
Total Stockholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements

(UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)
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March 31, December 31,

2005 2004
$ 41,78 $ 41,03¢
251,91° 214,08«
128,14: 115,97¢
23,69¢ 25,69:
11,92 12,46(
457 46t 409,25
269,23t 265,24!
77,31 77,80:
392,24( 364,31
155,87: 140,36¢
14,56¢ 21,45¢
$ 136669 $  1,278,44
$ 981 $ 1,63(
1,94¢ -
62,21+ 65,36+
47,24¢ 63,41
16,96¢ 13,89¢
52,40¢ 52,79:
181,75 197,09!
419,08: 340,86(
46,93¢ 40,04:
82,31: 80,61:
24,19¢ 23,35¢
22,65 20,86(
776,93t 702,82t
16,68 16,64¢
8,76¢ 8,76¢
57,36: 55,88t
613,64 601,07(
(28) (34)
33,00 36,79:
729,43 719,12¢
(139,679 (143,51)
589,75 575,61
$ 136669 $  1,27844




C URTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net caskiged by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic

(Gain) loss on sale of real estate and fixed a:
Non-cash pension expen

Deferred income taxe

(UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, nbtisinesses acquire

Increase in receivable
Increase in inventorie
Decrease in progress payme
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued exp
Increase (decrease) in deferred reve
Increase in income taxes paya
Decrease (increase) in other as:
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Total adjustments
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of r-operating asse
Additions to property, plant and equipmi
Acquisition of new businesses
Net cash used for investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of d
Principal payments on de
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of foreign currency
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of investing activiti

Fair value of assets acquired from current yeaunia@ttpns

Additional consideration on prior year acquisitic
Liabilities assumed from current year acquisiti
Cash acquired from current year acquisitions

Net cash paid for acquisitions

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Page 5 of 29

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2005 2004
$ 14,52 $ 15,60¢
11,48: 9,507
(2,919 87
50C 40
(297) (1,699
(10,874 (8,249
(7,629 (882)
(4,089 (1,859
(21,09¢) (7,469
1,317 (2,900
4,53¢ 4,03¢
49 (97%)
1,90¢ (535)
(27,119 (10,897)
(12,590 4,717
10,93: 1,08¢
(11,819 (6,102)
(68,76%) (118,589
(69,656 (123,600
209,00( 90,50¢
(129,18() (40,53))
3,967 3,521
83,781 53,49t
(796) 44
745 (65,35()
41,03¢ 98,67
$ 41,78° $ 33,32:
$ 82,48( $ 123,93(
6,21( 1,39¢
(19,702 (6,73¢)

(220) -
$ 68,76¢ $ 118,58t




C URTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands)

Unearned
Portion of Accumulated
Class B Additional Restricted Other
Common Common Paid in Retained Stock Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Awards Income Stock
December 31, 200: $ 16,617 $ 8,765 $ 52,99¢ $ 543,67( $ (55 $ 22,63¢ $ (165,74)
Net earning: - - - 65,06¢ - - -
Translation adjustments, r - - - - - 14,162 -
Dividends - - - (7,66€) - - -
Stock options exercised, r - - (1,74%) - - - 11,34¢
Stock issued under employee stock purchase plan,
net 35 - 1,35¢ - - - -
Equity issued in connection with acquisitic - - 3,25¢ - - - 10,74:
Other - - 18 - 21 - 141
December 31, 200 16,64¢ 8,76t 55,88¢ 601,07( (39 36,797 (143,519
Net earning: - - - 14,52 - - -
Translation adjustments, r - - - - - (3,793 -
Dividends - - - (1,949 - - -
Stock options exercised, r - - (2049) - - - 3,79(
Stock issued under employee stock purchase plan,
net 36 - 1,701 - - - -
Other - - (22) - 6 - 47
March 31, 2005 $ 16,68: $ 8,765 $ 57,36. $ 613,64¢ $ (28) $ 33,00¢ $ (139,679

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Page 6 of 29




C URTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

BASIS of PRESENTATION

Curtiss-Wright Corporation and its subsidiarie(t@orporation”) is a diversified multinational pider of highly engineered products
and services for high performance platforms. Thep@mtion provides products and services to a nummbglobal markets, such as
defense, commercial aerospace, nuclear power gamerail and gas, automotive, and general indakiniarkets. Operations are
conducted through 33 manufacturing facilities, 5ahtreatment service facilities, and 2 aerosgaceponent overhaul and repair
locations.

The unaudited consolidated financial statementsidiecthe accounts of Curtiss-Wright Corporation asanajority-owned subsidiarie
All material intercompany transactions and accobhatge been eliminated.

The unaudited consolidated financial statementh@fCorporation have been prepared in conformith wtcounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ameaaim such preparation requires management to mékeaéss and judgments that
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilitesenue, and expenses and disclosure of contiagsets and liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. The most sicanifi of these estimates include the costs to camfgrg-term contracts under the
percentage of completion accounting method, th&ulkees for property, plant, and equipment, célsivs used for testing the
recoverability of assets, pension plan and postratnt obligation assumptions, amount of invenargolescence, valuation of
intangible assets, warranty reserves, and futwaammental costs. Actual results may differ frdmede estimates. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments considered necesgaayfdir presentation have been reflected in tfies@cial statements.

The unaudited consolidated financial statementslghue read in conjunction with the audited cordaiked financial statements and
notes thereto included in the Corporation’s 2004ual Report on Form 10-K. The results of operatimnsnterim periods are not
necessarily indicative of trends or of the opegatiesults for a full year.

Certain prior year information has been reclasgif@econform to current presentation.
ACQUISITIONS

The Corporation acquired one business during tfeetimonths ended March 31, 2005, as described lie detail below. The
acquisition has been accounted for as a purchdbelve excess of the purchase price over the etihiair value of the net tangible
and intangible assets acquired recorded as goodwi#l Corporation makes preliminary estimates efgghirchase price allocations,
including the value of identifiable intangibles ki finite life, and records amortization basedrnuffe estimated useful life of those
intangible assets identified. The Corporation wiljust these estimates based upon analysis ofghitgl appraisals, when deemed
appropriate, and the determination of fair valuewfinalized, within twelve months from acquisition

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortitan shows the results of operations for the timeaths ended March 31, 2005 and
2004, as though the 2004 and 2005 acquisition®badrred on January 1, 2004. The unaudited prodgrasentation reflects
adjustments for (i) the amortization of acquirethingible assets, (ii) depreciation
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

of fixed assets at their acquired fair values) édditional interest expense on acquisition-reldterrowings, (iv) the issuance of stock
as consideration, (v) the income tax effect onpitteforma adjustments, using local statutory rades, (vi) costs of the acquired
businesses incurred as a result of the acquisifiba.pro forma adjustments related to certain aitipis are based on preliminary
purchase price allocations. Differences betweermptbkminary and final purchase price allocationsld have a significant impact on
the unaudited pro forma financial information prese. The unaudited pro forma financial informatiow is presented for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessanitlidative of the operating results that would hbgen achieved had the acquisitions
been completed as of the date indicated abovesaresults that may be obtained in the future.

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Revenue $ 262,93¢ $ 251,25
Net earning: 14,03: 15,66(
Diluted earnings per sha 0.64 0.7:

Please refer to the Corporation’s 2004 Annual Repof-orm 10-K for more detail on the 2004 acqinss.

The results of the acquired business have beendedlin the consolidated financial results of tleeg@ration from the date of
acquisition in the segment indicated as follows:

Motion Control Segment

Indal Technologies, Inc.

On March 1, 2005, the Corporation acquired thetanting stock of the parent corporation of IndatAmlogies, Inc. (“Indal”). The
purchase price was 78.0 million Canadian dollaé2 (& million) in cash and was funded from creditable under the Corporation’s
revolving credit facilities. The estimated excebthe purchase price over the fair value of theassets acquired is $29.4 million at
March 31, 2005, including foreign currency translat@adjustment gains of $0.8 million. The fair valof the net assets acquired was
based on current estimates. The Corporation majsatijese estimates based upon analysis of thitgd gapraisals and the final
determination of fair value.

Indal provides shipboard helicopter handling systéon naval applications with a global installed®&@an over 200 ships, including
more than 100 systems deployed in the U.S. Nawalls highly engineered, proprietary products eedtdlicopters to land aboard
naval vessels in rough sea conditions. Indal a¢sigehs and manufactures specialized telescopicansutigat provide protection for
helicopters aboard ships and cable handling systenmaval sonar applications. Indal is headquadearear Toronto, Ontario, Canada.
Revenues of the acquired business were 49.4 millmmadian dollars ($38.2 million) for the year esh@ecember 31, 2004.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

RECEIVABLES

Receivables at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2@04de amounts billed to customers and unbillearges on longerm contract:
consisting of amounts recognized as sales butithedl las of the dates presented. Substantiallgralbunts of unbilled receivables are
expected to be billed and collected within a y&&e composition of receivables for those periodssifollows:

(In thousands)
March 31, December 31,

2005 2004
Billed Receivables:
Trade and other receivabl $ 175,76 $ 156,89:
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour (3,980 (4,01))
Net billed receivable 171,78 152,88(
Unbilled Receivables:
Recoverable costs and estimated earnings not | 94,53t 79,15¢
Less: Progress payments appl! (14,405 (17,957
Net unbilled receivable 80,13( 61,20«
Receivables, ne $ 25191 $ 214,08

The net receivable balance at March 31, 2005 ird#P3.4 million related to the Corporation’s 2@@$juisition.
INVENTORIES

In accordance with industry practice, inventoriedts contain amounts relating to long-term congracid programs with long
production cycles, a portion of which will not bealized within one year. Inventories are valuethetower of cost (principally avera
cost) or market. The composition of inventorieassollows :

(In thousands)

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

Raw materia $ 50,23 $ 49,61¢
Work-in-process 42,29¢ 35,153
Finished goods and component pi 53,46: 50,115
Inventoried costs related to U.S. Government ahdrdbn¢-term contract: 20,18( 19,39¢
Gross inventorie 166,17- 154,28t
Less: Inventory reserwvi (26,540 (26,27¢)

Progress payments applied, principally relatedig-term contract: (11,490 (12,03)
Inventories, ne $ 128,14 $ 115,97¢

The net inventory balance at March 31, 2005 inaiudi®.9 million related to the Corporation’s 2005 aisition.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

GOODWILL

The Corporation accounts for acquisitions by assgthe purchase price to tangible and intangibkets and liabilities. Assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recordededt thir values, and the excess of the purchase mver the amounts assigned is
recorded as goodwill.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfer three months ended March 31, 2005 are as fsilow

(In thousands)

Flow Motion Metal
Control Control Treatmen:  Consolidatec
December 31, 200 $ 115,20 $ 228,57¢ $ 20,53 $ 364,311
Goodwill from 2005 acquisition - 28,581 - 28,581
Additional consideration of prior ye¢ acquisitions 84 326 24 434
Currency translation adjustme (155) (810) (229 (1,099
March 31, 200! $ 115,13: $ 256,68: $ 20,427 $ 392,24(

The purchase price allocations relating to threthefbusinesses acquired during the twelve momttieceMarch 31, 2005 are based on
estimates and have not yet been finalized.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net

Intangible assets are generally the result of aifippris and consist primarily of purchased techggl@ustomer related intangibles,
trademarks and service marks, and technology leserintangible assets are amortized over usefs likiat range between 1 and 20
years.

The following tables present the cumulative comjimsiof the Corporation’s intangible assets anduide $9.9 million of indefinite
lived intangible assets within other intangibleedasgor both periods presented.

(In thousands)
Accumulated

March 31, 2005 Gross Amortization Net

Developed technolog $ 86,99 $ (8,822 $ 78,17
Customer related intangibl: 69,214 (5,417 63,797
Other intangible asse 15,95¢ (2,05)) 13,90:
Total $ 172,16. $ (16,290 $ 155,87.

(In thousands)
Accumulated

December 31, 2004 Gross Amortization Net

Developed technolog $ 7597C $ (7,43€) $ 68,53¢
Customer related intangibl: 62,04¢ (4,282 57,767
Other intangible asse 15,95: (1,889 14,06¢
Total $ 15397. $ (13,6079 $ 140,36¢
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the changes in thébaktnce of other intangibles assets during theethronths ended March 31, 2005.

(In thousands)

Customer
Developed Related Other
technology, Intangibles, Intangible
net net Assets, ne Total

December 31, 200 $ 68,53 $ 57,767 $ 14,06¢ $ 140,36
Acquired during 200! 10,76¢ 7,17¢ 18 17,96¢
Amortization expens (1,43Y) (1,13¢) (16¢) (2,739
Net currency translation adjustme 304 (13 (15) 27¢€
March 31, 200! $ 78,17. $ 63,797 $ 13,90¢ $ 155,87:

WARRANTY RESERVES

The Corporation provides its customers with waiegnbn certain commercial and governmental prod&stimated warranty costs are
charged to expense in the period the related reventecognized based on quantitative historicpedarnce. Estimated warranty costs
are reduced as these costs are incurred and ag&thenty period expires and may be otherwise medliéis specific product
performance issues are identified and resolvedrakar reserves are included within other curratiilities on the Corporation’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets. In accordance witlin€ial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Intettat®n No. 45, “Guarantor’'s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaestincluding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtednétloers, an Interpretation of
FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescis$iBASB Interpretation No. 34", the following talyieesents the changes in the
Corporation’s warranty reserves:

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Warranty reserves at January $ 9661 $ 10,01
Increase due to acquisitio 1,79¢ 86C
Provision for current year sal 80¢ 477
Current year claim (610 (459
Change in estimates to |-existing warrantie (391) (144)
Foreign currency translation adjustm (13€) 79
Warranty reserves at March ¢ $ 11,13« $ 10,82
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

DEBT
Debt at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 dsnsishe following:

(In thousands)

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

Industrial Revenue Bonds, due through 2028. Wethhterage interest rate is 1.9°
and 1.39% per annum for the three months endedhVairc2005 and the year
ended December 31, 2004, respectiv $ 14,28: $ 14,29¢

Revolving Credit Agreement, due 2009. Weighted agerinterest rate per annum is
3.38% and 2.56% per annum for the three monthscelidech 31, 2005 and the

year ended December 31, 2004, respecti 205,00( 124,50(
5.13% Senior Notes due 20 74,76 75,32¢
5.74% Senior Notes due 20 125,09¢ 126,79
Other deb 924 1,57z

Total debt 420,06 342,49(
Less: Sho-term debi 981 1,63(
Total Lon¢-term debt $ 419,08 $ 340,86(

The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s destruments at March 31, 2005 aggregated $419l®mcompared to a carrying
value of $420.1 million. The carrying amount of treiable interest rate long-term debt approximéesvalue because the interest
rates are reset periodically to reflect currentkaaconditions. Fair values for the Corporationied rate debt were estimated by
management, utilizing valuations provided by thpedties in accordance with their proprietary models

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plans

The components of net periodic pension cost (bgrfefi the three months ended March 31, 2005 arfdl 2ere:

(In thousands)

Curtis-Wright Plans EMD Plans
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2005 2004 2005 2004
Service cos $ 259 % 2,31¢ % 924 % 841
Interest cos 1,992 1,954 2,06¢ 1,99¢
Expected return on plan ass (4,129 (4,25%) (1,94¢) (2,027)
Amortization of prior service co: 30 22 - -
Amortization of net los 7 2 - -
Amortization of transition obligatio Q) 1) - -
Net periodic benefit co: $ 50C $ 40 $ 1,04z % 81¢

No contributions have been made to the pensiorspdaning the three months ended March 31, 2005 Cidrporation anticipates
contributing $10.1 million, the estimated minimueguired amount, to the EMD Pension Plan during 208@bcontributions are
estimated to be made to the Curtiss-Wright PenBlan due to its funded status.
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10.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The components of the net postretirement benedit fow the three months ended March 31, 2005 afd 2e&re:

(In thousands)

Curtis-Wright Plan EMD Plan
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2005 2004 2005 2004
Service cos $ - $ - $ 191 $ 219
Interest cos 7 8 553 616
Amortization of net (gain) los (14) (15) - -
Net periodic benefit (income) cc $ 7 % 7 % 744 % 835

During the three months ended March 31, 2005, h@ation has paid zero and $0.4 million on thetiSs+Wright and EMD post-
retirement plans, respectively. During 2005, thepBoation anticipates contributing $0.1 million abtl7 million to the post-retirement
plans, respectively.

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and &taiation Act of 2003 was signed into law on Deben8, 2003. In accordan
with FASB Staff Position FAS 106-1, the Corporatinade a one-time election to defer recognitiorhefdffects of the law in the
accounting for its plan under FAS 106 and in pringddisclosures related to the plan until authtivitaguidance on the accounting for
the federal prescription drug subsidy is issuedjuRaions regarding the implementation of the Aetevfinalized in February of 2005
and the Corporation concluded that the prescripfiy benefits offered under this plan are notagally equivalent to Medicare Part
D under the Act. Therefore, in accordance with FASEff Position FAS 106-2, any measures of the Amdated Postretirement
Benefit Obligation or Net Periodic PostretiremeenBfit Cost reflect the effects of the Act on ttenp

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Diluted earnings per share were computed baseleoweighted average number of shares outstandirsgatil potentially dilutive
common shares. A reconciliation of basic to dilutedres used in the earnings per share calculatamfollows:

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Basic weighted average shares outstan 21,51 20,88:
Dilutive effect of stock options and deferred stacknpensatiol 303 32t
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 21,81« 21,20¢

At March 31, 2005 the Corporation had 125,000 staions outstanding that could potentially dilbtsic EPS in the future but were
excluded from the computation of diluted EPS fe three months ended March 31, 2005 as they waud been antidilutive for the
period. There were no antidilutive shares for tire¢ months ended March 31, 2004.
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11.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting foo&t-Based Compensation”, the Corporation electettount for its stock-based
compensation using the intrinsic value method uddeounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Aceuing for Stock Issued to
Employees”. As such, the Corporation does not neizegcompensation expense on non-qualified stotkmpgranted to employees
under the Corporation’s 1995 Long-Term IncentivenRI'LTI Plan”) when the exercise price of the ops is equal to the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of the grardronon-qualified stock options granted under tbepGration’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (“"ESPP”).

Pro forma information regarding net earnings arrdiags per share is required by SFAS No. 123, asnaled, and has been determi
as if the Corporation had accounted for its emposteck option grants under the fair value methedgribed by that Statement.
Information with regard to the number of optionarged, market price of the grants, vesting requéres) the maximum term of the
options granted by plan type, risk-free interest rthe expected volatility, the expected dividgredd, the weightedwerage option life
and the weighted-average grant-date fair valugtibos is included in the Corporation’s 2004 AnnRBeport on Form 10-K.

The Corporation’s pro forma results are as follows:

(In thousands,
except per share data)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Net earnings, as report: $ 14,52 $ 15,60¢
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgodetermined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tascts (56¢) (30€)
Pro forma net earning $ 13,95 $ 15,30!
Net earnings per shat
As reported
Basic $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7%
Diluted $ 0.67 $ 0.7¢
Pro forma:
Basic $ 0.6t $ 072
Diluted $ 0.64 $ 072

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239ee2004), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensét{tFAS 123(R)"). This
Statement requires a public entity to measure dise @ employee services received in exchangerf@veard of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the awarth(lvhited exceptions). That cost will be recogrizever the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchdngéhe award—the requisite service period (usuthie vesting period). No
compensation cost is recognized for equity instmsiéor which employees do not render the requssteice. Employee share
purchase plans will not result in recognition ofngensation cost if certain conditions are met; éhmmnditions
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

are much the same as the related conditions in E288R). This Statement is effective as of the beigip of the first interim or annual
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005A@ril 14, 2005 the U.S. Securities and Exchangmfission announced a deferral
of the effective date of FAS 123(R) for calendaaryeompanies until January 1, 2006. The Corpordtamnot yet determined the
impact of this pronouncement.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The environmental obligation at March 31, 2005 %26.1 million compared to $25.2 million at DecemBg&r 2004. Approximately
80% of the Corporatios’environmental reserves as of March 31, 2005 awtDber 31, 2004 represent the current value afipatiec
remediation costs and are not discounted primdrily to the uncertainty of timing of expenditurelse Temaining environmental
reserves are discounted using a rate of 4% toctdfie time value of money since the amount anéhgrof cash payments for the
liability are reliably determinable. All environmiahreserves exclude any potential recovery frosuiiance carriers or third-party legal
actions.

In the first quarter of 2005, the Corporation sitéd-airfield, New Jersey non-operating propertitjali was formerly an operating
facility for the Corporation’s Motion Control segnteUnder the sale agreement, the Corporationdtaged the responsibility to
continue the ongoing environmental remediationhengroperty, which is currently anticipated to léween three to five years with an
estimated cost of $1.5 million.
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Corporation manages and evaluates its opesdb@ased on the products and services it offergtendifferent markets it serves.
Based on this approach, the Corporation has tlega@rtable segments: Flow Control, Motion Contrakl Metal Treatment.

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2C

Flow Motion Metal Segment Corporate Consolidated
Control Control Treatmen Totals & Other Totals
Revenue from external custom: $ 109,417 $ 100,08 $ 48,99 $ 258,48" $ - $ 258,48
Intersegment revenu - 12C 10¢€ 228 (22¢) -
Operating incom: 10,34¢ 6,39( 7,817 24,55¢ 2,92z 27,47¢

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2C

Flow Motion Metal Segment Corporate Consolidated
Control Control ~ Treatmen Totals & Other Totals
Revenue from external custom: $ 89,39f $ 83,34« $ 42,19« $ 21493 $ - $ 214,93:
Intersegment revenu - - 184 184 (184) -
Operating incom: 10,431 8,28¢ 6,577 25,297 (134) 25,163

(In thousands)
Identifiable Asset:

Flow Motion Metal Segment  Corporate Consolidated

Control Control  Treatmen Totals & Other Totals
March 31, 200! $ 422,01: $ 656,81 $ 199,72. $ 1,278,54' $ 88,14! $ 1,366,69
December 31, 200 415,50: 576,27" 194,78 1,186,56: 91,87¢ 1,278,44

Adjustments to reconcile to earnings before incomtaxes:

(In thousands)
Three months ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Total segment operating incor $ 24,55¢ $ 25,297
Corporate and administrati 10 47
Gain (loss) on sale of real estate and fixed a: 2,91: (87)
Other income (expense), r (129 (402)
Interest expens (4,307%) (2,26%)
Earnings before income tax $ 23,05: $ 22,49¢
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continu ed
(UNAUDITED)

(GAIN) LOSS ON SALE OF REAL ESTATE AND FIXED ASSETS

On March 17, 2005, the Corporation completed the ahits Fairfield, New Jersey property, a formeerating property, for $10.5
million. The property encompasses approximatelpa&@s and was formerly an operating facility f& @ompany’s Motion Control
segment now located in Shelby, North Carolina. Assalt of the sale, the Corporation recognizedeat@x gain of $2.8 million in the
first quarter of 2005, which is recorded in opergtincome in the Corporation’s Consolidated Statgsef Earnings.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total comprehensive income for the three monthgémdarch 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2005 2004
Net earning: $ 14527 $ 15,60¢
Equity adjustment from foreign currency translasi (3,799 758
Total comprehensive incon $ 10,73 $ 16,36:

The equity adjustment from foreign currency tratisfarepresents the effect of translating the asaed liabilities of the Corporation’s
non-U.S. entities. This amount is impacted yeamgear by foreign currency fluctuations and by #leguisitions of foreign entities.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Corporation, through its subsidiary locate@witzerland, entered into a credit agreement wlg#SIWAG (“UBS”) for a credit
facility in the amount of 6.0 million Swiss fran¢®5.0 million) for the issue of performance guaesstrelated to long-term contracts.
The Corporation received prepayments on theseastrwhich are being used as collateral agaiestridit facility. The customers
can draw down on the line of credit for nonperfone®up to the amount of pledged collateral, whicteleased from restriction over
time as the Corporation meets its obligations utidetong-term contracts. Under the terms of thiglit facility agreement, the
Corporation is not permitted to borrow againstlthe of credit. The Corporation is charged a commsitt fee on the outstanding
balance of the collateralized cash. As of March2RD5, the amount of restricted cash under thiditiawas $2.7 million, all of which
is expected to be released from restriction after year.

The Corporation has several NRC licenses necefsiattye continued operation of the business. Imeation with these licenses, the
NRC required financial assurance from the Corponratin the form of a parent company guarantee)asmrting estimated
environmental decommissioning and remediation casssciated with the commercial operations covbyetthe licenses. The
guarantee for costs of decommissioning the fachityich is estimated for 2017, is $3.1 million.

Consistent with other entities its size, the Coapion is party to a number of legal actions anéhtdanone of which individually or in
the aggregate, in the opinion of management, gzea®d to have a material adverse effect on thpdZation’s results of operations or
financial position.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
PART | — ITEM 2
M ANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Except for historical information, this Quarterhgport on Form 10-Q may be deemed to contain “fodwaoking” information. Examples of
forward-looking information include, but are natited to, (a) projections of or statements regaydeturn on investment, future earnings,
interest income, other income, earnings or losshare, growth prospects, capital structure, andrdinancial terms, (b) statements of plans
and objectives of management, (c) statements ofdigconomic performance, and (d) statements afigssons, such as economic conditi
underlying other statements. Such forward-lookifgrimation can be identified by the use of forwhradking terminology such as “believes,”
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipates,’or the negative of any of the foregoing or othetataons thereon or comparable
terminology, or by discussion of strategy. No agsue can be given that the future results deschipetie forward-looking information will

be achieved. Such statements are subject to tiskgstainties, and other factors, which could cacseal results to differ materially from
future results expressed or implied by such forwlaadking information. Such statements in this QedytReport on Form 10-Q include,
without limitation, those contained in (a) ItemFinancial Statements and (b) Item 2. Managemerissu3sion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations. Importantdesthat could cause the actual results to diffetemially from those in these forward-
looking statements include, among other itemsCtbigoration’s successful execution of internal perfance plans; performance issues with
key suppliers, subcontractors, and business parttier ability to negotiate financing arrangemaerith lenders; legal proceedings; changes in
the need for additional machinery and equipmentarid the cost for the expansion of the Corpordmperations; ability of outside third
parties to comply with their commitments; produetthnd and market acceptance risks; the effectasfoenic conditions; the impact of
competitive products and pricing; product developneommercialization, and technological difficaktj social and economic conditions and
local regulations in the countries in which the @woation conducts its businesses; unanticipategdt@mental remediation expenses or
claims; capacity and supply constraints or diffiilgd; an inability to perform customer contractsuaticipated cost levels; changing priorities
or reductions in the U.S. Government defense buydgetract continuation and future contract awat$l§. and international military budget
constraints and determinations; the factors dismissider the caption “Risk Factors” in the Corpords Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004; and other fatttargenerally affect the business of companiesaijng in the Corporation’s markets
and/or industries.

The Corporation assumes no obligation to updatedut-looking statements to reflect actual resultshanges in or additions to the factors
affecting such forward-looking statements.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS , continued

COMPANY ORGANIZATION

The Corporation manages and evaluates its opesdbased on the products and services it offergrendifferent markets it serves. Based on
this approach, the Corporation has three reportgenents: Flow Control, Motion Control, and Mé&tegdatment. The Flow Control segment
primarily designs, manufactures, distributes, amtises a broad range of highly engineered flowtmdmproducts. These products are for
severe service military and commercial applicatimetuding power generation, oil and gas, and gariedustrial. The Motion Control
segment primarily designs, develops, and manufesthigh-performance mechanical systems, drive mgstembedded computing solutions,
and electronic controls and sensors for the defaesespace, and general industrial markets. Me&gltment provides a variety of
metallurgical services, principally shot peeniragdr peening, heat treating, and coatings, foowmarindustries, including military and
commercial aerospace, automotive, constructionpgagnt, oil and gas, power generation, and genedaistrial.

RESULTS of OPERATIONS

Analytical definitions

Throughout management’s discussion and analydisaricial condition and results of operations, térens “incremental,” “base,” and
“organic” are used to explain changes from per@mgeriod. “Incremental” references are definedhascurrent period results of acquisitions
included in the Corporation’s results of operatiorswhich no prior period results exist. Therefdire results of operations for acquisitions
are “incremental” for the twelve months from theedaf acquisition.

For quarterly reporting purposes, acquisitionssagregated from the results of the Corporatiortieiobusinesses for a full year, or in the
more likely event of a mid-quarter acquisition,dnders. For year to date reporting purposes, aitiuis remain segregated for two years.
The remaining businesses are referred to as trse*sinesses, and operations of the base busiassreferred to as “organic.” An
acquisition is considered base when the reportargpg includes fully comparable current and prieripd data. Therefore, for the first quai
our organic growth excludes the twelve acquisitiocospleted since January 1, 2004.

Three months ended March 31, 2005

Sales for the first quarter of 2005 totaled $258ifion, an increase of 20% from sales of $214.9iom for the first quarter of 2004. New
orders received for the current quarter of $32518am were up 38% over the orders of $235.4 millior the first quarter of 2004.
Acquisitions made in 2005 and 2004 contributed $48illion in incremental new orders received in tinst quarter of 2005. Backlog
increased 19% to $748.2 million at March 31, 20@8nf $627.7 million at December 31, 2004. The adtioismade in 2005 represented
$57.4 million of the backlog at March 31, 2005. Agximately 70% of our backlog is from military bosss.

Sales for the first quarter of 2005, as compardtieécsame period last year, benefited from the iaitipns completed in 2004 and the first
quarter of 2005, which contributed $35.8 millionimicremental sales (or 82% of the overall incre@sé)e first quarter of 2005. The
remaining base businesses generated overall orgemith of 4% in the first quarter of 2005. Thiganic sales growth was driven by our
Metal Treatment and Motion Control segments, which
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS , continued

experienced organic growth of 13% and 5%, respelgticompared to the prior year period. Our Flowtal segment’s organic sales
declined 1% in the first quarter of 2005 as comgaoethe prior year period.

In our base businesses, higher sales from our Metaltment segment of global shot peening senat&8.7 million, higher Motion Control
segment sales to the global commercial aerospatgeneral industrial markets of $4.4 million, angher sales from our Flow Control
segment to the oil and gas and commercial powegrgdon markets of $4.5 million all contributedthe organic growth. Offsetting these
increases are lower sales of flow control prodtzthie U. S. Navy of $6.0 million due to timingadntractual revenues and lower sales of
motion control products to the global transportairedustry of $1.5 million. In addition, foreign mancy translation favorably impacted sales
by $2.2 million for the quarter ended March 31, 20€ompared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the first quarter of 2005 leda$27.5 million, an increase of 9% from operaiimcpme of $25.2 million for the same
period last year. The increase was mainly due®.8 million gain on the sale of our Fairfield peofy, which was previously used for
operations. Business segment operating incomengecB% for the same comparable periods. The deiclaheded lower organic operating
income of 2%, offset somewhat by our 2004 and 2G@fuisitions, which contributed $0.1 million of irmental operating income in the first
quarter of 2005. The decline in organic operatimgme was caused primarily by unfavorable salesimaur Flow Control and Motion
Control segments. This decline was partially offsgbrganic operating income growth of 17% in thetd Treatment segment. Our Motion
Control acquisitions experienced increased intégratosts of $0.8 million, primarily in the embeddsomputing group, which further
reduced the operating margins. In addition, anditeid shipping delays and additional costs reldtrgrelocation into a larger facility resull

in an operating loss for the quarter of $1.0 millat our European valves division. Operating incevas also negatively impacted by $0.5
million higher pension expense from the Curtissghftipension plan in the first quarter 2005 as carybéo the prior year. Foreign exchange
translation had a favorable impact of $0.4 millmnoperating income for the first quarter of 2086 compared to the prior year period. We
believe operating margins will improve in the settalf of 2005 as we expect greater sales volurdd@mer integration costs in our
embedded computing group, reduced operating caststhe benefits of integration, and better prodmict through sales of higher margin
products.

Net earnings for the first quarter of 2005 tota#dd.5 million, or $0.67 per diluted share, whichresents a decrease of 7% as compar

the net earnings for the first quarter of 2004 15.$ million, or $0.74 per diluted share. Lowermsegt operating income in the first quarte
2005 of $0.7 million coupled with higher interegpense of $2.0 million, due to both higher debelswand higher interest rates, lowered net
earnings in the first quarter of 2005. Net earnifagghe first quarter of 2005 include a net after gain of $1.5 million (approximately $0.07
per diluted share), related to the sale of non-atjpeg property. In addition, the net earnings fa first quarter of 2004 included nonrecurring
tax benefits of $1.5 million (approximately $0.0&rgliluted share).
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Segment Operating Performance:

(In thousands, except percentages)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
%
2005 2004 Change
Sales:
Flow Control $ 109,41 $ 89,39¢ 22.4%
Motion Control 100,08 83,34« 20.1%
Metal Treatmen 48,99( 42,194 16.1%
Total Sales $ 258,48 $ 214,93 20.2%
Operating Income:
Flow Control $ 10,34¢ $ 10,43 -0.8%
Motion Control 6,39(C 8,28¢ -22.%%
Metal Treatmen 7,817 6,571 18.%
Total Segments 24 55¢ 25,297 -2.8%
Pension (Expense)/Incon (500 (40 1,150.(%
Corporate & Othe 3,42: (94) -3,741.%%
Total Operating Income $ 2747¢ $ 25,16 9.2%
Operating Margins
Flow Control 9.5% 11.7%
Motion Control 6.4% 9.9%
Metal Treatmen 16.(% 15.6%
Total Curtiss-Wright 10.€% 11.7%

Flow Control

The Corporation’s Flow Control segment posted salél 09.4 million for the first quarter of 2005) ancrease of 22% from $89.4 million in
the first quarter of 2004. The 2004 acquisitionstdbuted $20.9 million in incremental sales in st quarter of 2005 over the prior year
period. This segment experienced an overall dealimeganic growth of 1% primarily resulting fromwer overall sales to the U.S. Navy of
$6.0 million due to timing of customer driven deliy schedules, offset mostly by higher sales twthand gas and commercial power
generation markets of $4.5 million. Sales of purapd generators dropped $8.0 million as we completeduction, development, and
prototype work on several submarine classes arti@@VN 21 aircraft carrier. The revenues assodiaii¢h these products are expected to
increase in the second half of 2005 through greatefuction work on the CVN 21 aircraft carrier ahd VA class submarine. Offsetting
these declines were increased revenues from valygeaneric electronic product sales and developmeri for the U.S. Navy of $4.6

million due to increasing market share. Revenueiselt from the oil and gas market were driven maby our coker valve sales, which
increased $2.0 million, as the product continuegatio acceptance in the industry. Commercial payegieration revenues are being driven by
sales of reactor coolant pumps and control dridemechanisms to nuclear power plants, offset byop th motor remanufacture, which
netted an increase of $1.4 million period overgetrSales in this market are generally driven tst@mer maintenance schedules, which vary
in timing and can cause fluctuations from periogéoiod. In addition, foreign currency translatfarorably impacted this segment’s sales for
the first quarter of 2005 by $0.4 million, as comgghto the prior year period.

Page 21 of 29




CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS , continued

Operating income for the first quarter of 2005 B&6.3 million, a decrease of 1% as compared todsdlllion for the same period last year.
The decline was due to the lower sales volumedadXls. Navy, decreased higher margin spares satbs il and gas market, increased <
of generic electronics products and developmergrpras, which generate lower margins, and incredsedlopment costs on new products,
mostly offset by contributions from the 2004 acgigss. In addition, anticipated shipping delaysl aalditional costs relating to a relocation
into a larger facility resulted in an operatingdder the quarter of $1.0 million at our Europeatves division. The business segment also
benefited slightly from favorable foreign currertcgnslation in the first quarter of 2005, as conaplaio the first quarter of 2004.

New orders received for the Flow Control segmetatiéal $132.7 million in the first quarter of 20@presenting an increase of 15% from
same period in 2004. The increase is due to tirerimental new orders from the 2004 acquisitions2.$ million. The base businesses
experienced a decline in new orders of 4% mainky tdustrong orders received in the first quarte2@d4 in the oil and gas industry. Backlog
increased 6% to $419.4 million at March 31, 20@srfi$396.3 million at December 31, 2004.

Motion Control

Sales for the Corporation’s Motion Control segmeanteased 20% to $100.1 million in the first quad®2005 from $83.3 million in the first
quarter of 2004, primarily due to the contributifrthe 2004 and 2005 acquisitions, which contridu@#3.3 million in incremental sales (or
79% of the overall increase) for the first quadBR005. Organic sales growth was 5% in the fitgtrter of 2005. This organic growth
increase was due primarily to increased demanddotroller products by the general industrial maridich contributed $2.3 million to the
increase. Upgrades to both commercial and defensgpEan aerospace programs have driven demandifolata recording devices, adding
another $0.8 million to the organic sales growthe Begment also experienced increased sales gmitstelectronics markets for production
work on helicopter radar warning systems and regesnd production work for the mobile gun systemiclv more than offset the decline in
production work on the Bradley and Abrams prograems), contributed a net $1.0 million to increasest fijuarter sales. Offsetting these
increases were reduced spares sales of actuastensyon the F-16 of $2.8 million, due mainly titig of customer order requirements, and
lower sales of tilting train systems in Europe @&fSpmillion due to expiration of this program in@®0 Foreign currency translation favorably
impacted sales for the first quarter of 2005 by$tillion, as compared to the prior year period.

Operating income for the first quarter of 2005 B&s4 million, a decrease of 23% from the same pdast year of $8.3 million. The
segment’s 2004 and 2005 acquisitions experiencédca@mental loss in the quarter of $1.5 millioreda lower revenues based on customer
delivery requirements and increased integratiomsonis$0.8 million. Additionally, the segment exjggriced an organic operating income
decline of 3% driven primarily by unfavorable safeix. The most significant of these impacts ocadiireour military defense business,
where higher margin spares sales were replaceoMsr Imargin production and development work. Theiess segment also benefited from
favorable foreign currency translation of $0.2 mailin the first quarter of 2005, as compared ®fttst quarter of 2004.
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New orders received for the Motion Control segntetaled $143.4 million in the first quarter of 20@H increase of 85% from the sa
period in 2004. Acquisitions made in 2004 and 2605tributed $21.4 million in incremental new orderseived in the first quarter of 2005,
while the remaining base businesses grew $35.8milbr 60%, with gains across most product lined market segments. Backlog increa
42% to $326.1 million at March 31, 2005 from $22fhilion at December 31, 2004. The acquisition mexd2005 represented $57.4 million
of the backlog at March 31, 2005.

Metal Treatment

Sales for the Corporation’s Metal Treatment segrt@ated $49.0 million for the first quarter of Z)Qip 16% when compared with $42.2
million in the first quarter of 2004. The sales mmypement is mainly due to organic growth of 13%a&se businesses in the first quarter of
2005, which was driven by higher global shot pegmavenues from the aerospace and automotive nsaok&8.7 million. Generally, this
segment’s revenue growth can be attributed torttpeaving economic conditions worldwide. The segriseeP®04 acquisitions contributed
$1.7 million in incremental revenue period overiperIn addition, foreign currency translation faably impacted sales for the first quarte
2005 by $0.8 million, as compared to the prior y@eaniod.

Operating income for the first quarter of 2005 eaged 19% to $7.8 million from $6.6 million for ts@me period last year. Overall margin
improvement was due mainly to the higher salesmelmoted above. Partially offsetting the operatimopme margins of the segment were
unfavorable sales mix and increased operating .coktsbusiness segment also benefited from faverfalokign currency translation of $0.2
million in the first quarter of 2005, as comparedte first quarter of 2004.

New orders received for the Metal Treatment segritated $49.7 million in the first quarter of 20@® increase of 16% from the sa
period in 2004. Acquisitions made in 2004 contrézb$1.7 million in incremental new orders receiirethe first quarter of 2005. Backlog
increased 39% to $2.6 million at March 31, 200%rfi$1.9 million at December 31, 2004.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense of $2.0 milliarttie first quarter of 2005 was due to higher det¢ls and higher interest rates associated
with the funding of our acquisitions, which accaahfor 60% and 40% of the increase, respectively.
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CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Corporation derives the majority of its opeargtcash inflow from receipts on the sale of goaut$ services and cash outflow for the
procurement of materials and labor and is theredatgect to market fluctuations and conditions.ustantial portion of the Corporation’s
business is in the defense sector, which is cheniaetl by long-term contracts. Most of our longvterontracts allow for several billing points
(progress or milestones) that provide the Corpomnatiith cash receipts as costs are incurred thrmutgihe project rather than upon contract
completion, thereby reducing working capital regmients. In some cases, these payments can exeeeasts incurred on a project.

Operating Activities

The Corporation’s working capital was $275.7 miiliat March 31, 2005, an increase of $63.5 millimmT the working capital at December
31, 2004 of $212.2 million. The ratio of currensets to current liabilities was 2.5 to 1 at Mardh 3005 versus 2.1 to 1 at December 31,
2004. Cash and cash equivalents totaled $41.8milti the aggregate at March 31, 2005, up from@#illion at December 31, 2004. Days
sales outstanding at March 31, 2005 was 56 dagerapared to 47 days at December 31, 2004. Invettong were 5.7 for the three months
ended March 31, 2005 as compared to 5.8 at Dece®ih&004.

Excluding cash, working capital increased $62.8iomlfrom December 31, 2004, partially due to thddl Technologies acquisition made in
the first quarter of 2005. In addition to the impaftthe acquisition, working capital changes wenienarily affected by a decrease of $21.1
million in accounts payable and accrued expensesalthe payments of material procured in late 2@@4ual employee bonuses and inte
and an increase of $10.9 million in accounts reatgry due mainly to delayed milestone billings anstomer payments.

I nvesting Activities

The Corporation acquired one business in thedustter of 2005. A combination of cash resourcesfands available under the
Corporations credit agreement was utilized for the fundinghef acquisition, which totaled $62.8 million. Addital acquisitions will depen
in part, on the availability of financial resourasa cost of capital that meets stringent critékg@such, future acquisitions, if any, may be
funded through the use of the Corporation’s cashcaish equivalents, through additional financingilable under the credit agreement, or
through new financing alternatives. As indicated\ote 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statementh@fCorporation’s Annual Report,
certain acquisition agreements contain continganthmse price adjustments, such as potential agrpayments. In the first quarter of 2005,
the Corporation made approximately $0.9 milliorearn-out payments. Additionally, the Corporatiordn additional $5.1 million relating
to prior period acquisitions, as required by thenteof the acquisition agreements.

Capital expenditures were $11.8 million in thetfgearter of 2005. Internally available funds wadequate to meet the capital expenditures.
Principal expenditures included the purchase aha facility for our European valves division, nemdareplacement machinery and
equipment and for the expansion of new producslinihin the business segments. The Corporadierpected to make additional capital
expenditures of approximately $40 million during temainder of 2005 on machinery and equipmentrigoing operations at the business
segments, expansion of existing facilities, aneégtments in new product lines and facilities.
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Financing Activities

At March 31, 2005, the Corporation had a $400 onillcredit agreement (the “Agreement”) with a grofipen banks. Borrowings under the
agreement bear interest at a floating rate basedasket conditions. In addition, the Corporatioimterest rate and level of facility fees are
dependent on certain financial ratio levels, ainéefin the Agreement. The Corporation is subjecrtnual facility fees on the commitments
under the Agreement. In connection with the Agresitie Corporation paid customary transaction feashave been deferred and are b
amortized over the term of the Agreement. The Caan is required under the Agreement to maintairtain financial ratios and meet
certain financial tests, the most restrictive ofahhis a debt to capitalization limit of 55%. Thegwement does not contain any subjective
acceleration clauses. At March 31, 2005, the Cearpan is in compliance with these covenants andthadlexibility to issue additional debt
of $301 million without exceeding the covenant limhéfined in the Agreement. The Corporation wouddsider other financing alternatives
maintain capital structure balance and ensure dang® with all debt covenants. Cash borrowings|(sling letters of credit) under the
Agreement at March 31, 2005 were $205.0 millioc@spared to $124.5 million at December 31, 2004 Tiused credit available under
these agreements at March 31, 2005 was $172.@millihe Agreement expires in July 2009.

On September 25, 2003 the Corporation issued $200i6n of Senior Notes (the “Notes”). The Notemnsist of $75.0 million of 5.13%
Senior Notes that mature on September 25, 2016a28.0 million of 5.74% Senior Notes that matureSaptember 25, 2013. The Notes are
senior unsecured obligations and are equal in o§paiyment to the Corporatiaéxisting senior indebtedness. The Corporatioits aiption,
can prepay at any time, all or from time to timg a@art of, the Notes, subject to a make-whole arhguaccordance with the terms of the
Note Purchase Agreement. In connection with theebldhe Corporation paid customary fees that haea deferred and will be amortiz

over the terms of the Notes. The Corporation isiiregl under the Note Purchase Agreement to maictiain financial ratios, the most
restrictive of which is a debt to capitalizatiomii of 60%. At March 31, 2005, the Corporationricompliance with these covenants.

On November 6, 2003 the Corporation entered intoitwerest rate swap agreements with notional atscafr520 million and $60 million to
effectively convert the fixed interest rates on $7®& million 5.13% Senior Notes and $125 millioli8% Senior Notes, respectively, to
variable rates based on specified spreads ovensixh LIBOR. In the short-term, the swaps are etqubto provide the Corporation with a
lower level of interest expense related to the Klote

Industrial revenue bonds, which are collateraliagdeal estate, machinery, and equipment, were3®hillion at March 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004. The loans outstanding unde8ehér Notes, Interest Rate Swaps, Revolving Césglieement, and Industrial Revenue
Bonds had variable interest rates averaging 4.32%agl the first quarter of 2005 and 3.65% for 2004.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of
FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS, cont inued

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our consolidated financial statements and acconipgmpotes are prepared in accordance with accayiptimciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. Preparation of theseestants requires us to make estimates and assusftianaffect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Tastgrates and assumptions are affected by thecapiph of our accounting policies. Critical
accounting policies are those that require apptinatf management’s most difficult, subjective complex judgments, often as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effects of mattatsre inherently uncertain and may change liseguent periods. A summary of
significant accounting policies and a descriptibaacounting policies that are considered critmoaly be found in our 2004 Annual Report on
Form 10-K, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exepa Commission (the “SEC”) on March 15, 2005, i Motes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, Note 1, and the Critical Aetimg Policies section of Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.

Recently issued accounting standards:

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239geh2004), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensdt{tFAS 123(R)"). This
Statement requires a public entity to measure tise @ employee services received in exchangerf@veard of equity instruments based on
the grant-date fair value of the award (with linditexceptions). That cost will be recognized overgRriod during which an employee is
required to provide service in exchange for therdwahe requisite service period (usually the vegperiod). No compensation cost is
recognized for equity instruments for which emplegelo not render the requisite service. Employaesgburchase plans will not result in
recognition of compensation cost if certain comdlis are met; those conditions are much the santeaslated conditions in FAS 123(R).
This Statement is effective as of the beginnintheffirst interim or annual reporting period thagins after June 15, 2005. On April 14, 2005
the SEC announced a deferral of the effective oBFAS 123(R) for calendar year companies untiuday 1, 2006. The Corporation has not
yet determined the impact of this pronouncem
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Item 3. Q UANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

There have been no material changes in the Coipoisimarket risk during the three months endeddd&81, 2005. Information regarding
market risk and market risk management policiesase fully described in item 7A, “Quantitative aQdialitative Disclosures about Market
Risk,” of the Corporation’s Annual Report on For@K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Item 4. C ONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of March 31, 2005, the Corporation’s managemantuding the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officgand Chief Financial Officer,
conducted an evaluation of the Corporation’s disate controls and procedures; as such term isetbfimRules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aetk(ttie “Exchange Act”). Based on such evaluatio& Corporation’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded tifa¢ Corporation’s disclosure controls and proceslare effective, in all material respects,
to ensure that information required to be disclasettie reports the Corporation files and submitdar the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported as and wheinegq

There have not been any changes in the Corporatintgrnal control over financial reporting (asfsterm is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quagteled March 31, 2005 that have materially affbote are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Corporation’s internal cantover financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. L EGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporadiwhits subsidiaries are subject to various pendiaims, lawsuits, and contingent
liabilities. The Corporation does not believe ttia disposition of any of these matters, indivitiual in the aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation’s consolidatedrfcial position or results of operations.

Curtiss-Wright Corporation or its subsidiaries h&een named in approximately 140 lawsuits thagalliejury from exposure to asbestos. To
date, Curtiss-Wright has secured its dismissalautlprejudice in approximately 30 lawsuits, andusrently in discussions for similar
dismissal in several others, and has not been fbablé or paid any material sum of money in satéat in any case. Curtiss-Wright believes
that the minimal use of asbestos in its operatamsthe relatively nofriable condition of asbestos in its products makeslikely that it will
face material liability in any asbestos litigatievhether individually or in the aggregate. Curti§¥sight does maintain insurance coverage for
these lawsuits and it believes adequate coveragtsea cover any unanticipated asbestos liability.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Item 6. E XHIBITS and REPORTS on FORM 8-K

(@)

(b)

Exhibits

Exhibit 2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Recapitalizatiated as of February 1, 2005, by and between Gurtis
Wright Corporation and CW Merger Sub, Inc. (incagted by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-k filed
February 3, 2005

Exhibit 3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amendey B8 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhiktib 3
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

Exhibit 3.2 By-laws as amended through May 3, 2005, filed here\
Exhibit 31.1  Certification of Martin R. Benante, Chairman and@;Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, filed hete
Exhibit 31.2  Certification of Glenn E. Tynan, Chief Financialfoér, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, fileteindth

Exhibit 32 Certification of Martin R. Benante, Chairman and@&nd Glenn E. Tynan, Chief Financial Officer,
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002, furnished herewi

Reports on Form-K

On February 3, 2005, the Corporation filed Form 8+i¢ler Items 1.01 and 9.01 respecting the execofitine merger agreement for
the Corporation’s recapitalization of its commoaocét A press release announcing same was furneheahibit 99.

On February 4, 2005, the Corporation furnished Fé#under Items 2.02 and 9.01 respecting the annanectof financial results.
press release announcing financial results fofahgh quarter and year ended December 31, 2004wmished as exhibit 99.

On March 3, 2005, the Corporation filed Form 8-Kdanltems 2.02, 4.02, 8.01 and 9.01 announcingpiteatiously issued financial
information contained in the Corporation’s predsase dated February 3, 2005, announcing the Coyigp2004 fourth quarter and
year end financial results require revision andutthao longer be relied upon. A press release amting same was furnished as ext
99.

On March 28, 2005, the Corporation filed ForriK 8nder Items 8.01 and 9.01 announcing that thep@ation received a supplemer
ruling from the Internal Revenue Service permitting Corporation to go forward with its proposecatalization of its Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock into a single @assmmon stock. A press release announcing saredusaished as exhibit 99.
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CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

S IGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CURTISSWRIGHT CORPORATION
(Registran

By: /s/ Glenn E. Tynal
Glenn E. Tynan
Vice President Finance / C.F.O.
Dated: May 10, 200
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BY-LAWS
OF
CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I.

OFFICES.

SECTION 1. _Registered Officelhe registered office of Curtiss-Wright Corpooatihereinafter called the Corporation) in the
State of Delaware, shall be in the City of Wilmioigt County of New Castle.

SECTION 2. _Other OfficesThe Corporation may also have an office or offiaesuch other place or places either within or
without the State of Delaware as the Board of Diecmay from time to time determine or the businefsthe Corporation require.

ARTICLE II.

MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS.

SECTION 1. _Place of Meeting#\l meetings of the stockholders for the electadrdirectors or for any other purpose shall be
held at such place either within or without thet&taf Delaware as shall be designated from tinterte by the Board of Directors and stated
in the notice of the meeting or in a duly executadver of notice thereof.

SECTION 2. _Annual MeetingsThe annual meeting of the stockholders for tleetedn of directors and for the transaction of
such other proper business as may come beforedbéinmg shall be held on a date and at a time asbhaaesignated from time to time by the
Board of Directors and stated in the notice ofrtteeting or in a duly executed waiver of notice ¢loér

SECTION 3. _Special Meeting#\ special meeting of the stockholders for anyppsge or purposes, unless otherwise presc
by statute, may be called only by the Chairmarin dris absence by the President, by the Board ddidrs, or by the Secretary at the request
in writing of a majority of the Board of Directoesmd may not be called by the stockholders of thep@ation.

SECTION 4. _Notice of MeetingExcept as otherwise provided by statute, notiecsach meeting of the stockholders, whether
annual or special, shall be given not less thardésts nor more than sixty days before the day actwthe meeting is to be held, to each
stockholder of record entitled to vote at such mmgeby delivering a written or printed notice theféo him personally, or by mailing such
notice in a postage prepaid envelope addressddtathis post office address furnished by himh® $ecretary of the Corporation for such
purpose, or, if he shall not have furnished toSkeretary of the Corporation his address for suchgse, then at his post office address as it
appears on the records of the Corporation, or by
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transmitting a notice thereof to him as otherwiseptted by law. Except where expressly requiredaldy, no publication of any notice of a
meeting of stockholders shall be required. Evechswotice shall state the place, date and houreofrteeting and, in the case of special
meetings, the purpose or purposes for which theingeis called. Notice of any meeting of stockhakishall not be required to be given to
any stockholder who shall attend such meeting isgreor by proxy except as otherwise provided byuse; and if any stockholder shall in
person or by attorney thereunto authorized, waotee of any meeting, whether before or after sueleting be held, notice thereof need not
be given to him. Notice of any adjourned meetinghef stockholders shall not be required to be giegnept when expressly required by law.
Notice of any meeting of stockholders as hereivigied shall not be required to be given to anyldtotder where the giving of such notice
prohibited or is rendered impossible by the lawthefUnited States of America.

SECTION 5. _List of Stockholderdt shall be the duty of the Secretary or othdicef who shall have charge of the stock
ledger either directly or through a transfer agggointed by the Board of Directors, to prepareraafte, at least ten days before every
meeting of stockholders, complete lists of the dtotders entitled to vote thereat, arranged in ahgtical order, and showing the address of
each stockholder, the holders of each class okstppearing separately, and indicating the numbshares held by each, certified by the
Secretary or Transfer Agent. Such lists shall bendp the examination of any stockholder for angppee germane to the meeting as required
by the Delaware General Corporation Law, and slelproduced and kept at the time and place of #eting during the whole time thereof,
and subject to the inspection of any stockholdes wiay be present. Upon the willful neglect or rafus the directors to produce such list:
any meeting, they shall be ineligible to any offadesuch meeting. The original or a duplicate stedger shall be the only evidence as to who
are the stockholders entitled to examine the skedger, such lists, or the books of the Corporatioto vote in person or by proxy at such
meeting.

SECTION 6. _QuorumAt each meeting of the stockholders, the holdérsot less than a majority of the issued and
outstanding stock of the Corporation present eitihg@erson or by proxy and entitled to vote at smgfeting shall constitute a quorum except
where otherwise provided by law or by the Resté&tedificate of Incorporation or these by-laws. e absence of a quorum, the stockholders
of the Corporation present in person or by proxy entitled to vote, by majority vote, or, in thesahce of any stockholders, any officer
entitled to preside or act as Secretary at suchingeshall have the power to adjourn the meetingiftime to time, until stockholders holdi
the requisite amount of stock shall be presengprasented. At any such adjourned meeting at wahigplorum may be present any business
may be transacted which might have been transattid meeting as originally called. The absenoefany meeting of the number required
by the laws of the State of Delaware or by the &estCertificate of Incorporation of the Corporatar by these by-laws for action upon any
given matter shall not prevent action at such mgstupon any other matter or matters which mayertggome before the meeting, and if
the holders of not less than a majority of theéssand outstanding stock of the Corporation entittevote at that time upon such other mg
or matters shall be present either in person qrbyy at such meeting, a quorum for the considemnatif such other matter or matters shall be
present and the meeting may proceed forthwith akel &ction upon such other matter or matters.




SECTION 7. _OrganizationThe Chairman or, in his absence, the Presidenip the absence of both of them, any Vice
President present, shall call meetings of the $toiclers to order and shall act as Chairman thehedifie absence of all of the foregoing
officers, the holders of a majority in interestloé stock present in person or by proxy and edtitbevote may elect any stockholder of record
present and entitled to vote to act as Chairmaheofmeeting until such time as any one of the foireg officers shall arrive, whereupon he
shall act as Chairman of the meeting. The Secretatiy his absence, an Assistant Secretary sbiafisasecretary at all meetings of the
stockholders. In the absence from any such meefitite Secretary and the Assistant Secretary aregegies, the Chairman may appoint any
person present to act as secretary of the me&inmgh person shall be sworn to the faithful discharihis duties as such secretary of the
meeting before entering thereon.

SECTION 8. Notice of Stockholder Business amaniations.

(@) Annual Meetings of Stockholders.

(i) Nominations of persons for election to thealBd of Directors of the Corporation and the prepos business to be
considered by the stockholders may be made atramameeting of stockholders only (A) pursuantte Corporation’s notice of meeting (or
any supplement thereto), (B) by or at the directibthe Board of Directors or (C) by any stockhaldéthe Corporation who was a
stockholder of record of the Corporation at thestitime notice provided for in this Section 8 is d&led to the Secretary of the Corporation,
who is entitled to vote at a meeting and who coesplvith the notice procedures set forth in thigiSed.

(i) For nominations or other business to bepprty brought before an annual meeting by a stolddnrgursuant to clau
(C) of paragraph (i) of this Section 8, the stoddlko must have given timely notice thereof in wgtito the Secretary of the Corporation and
any such proposed business other than the nonmisatiopersons for election to the Board of Direstmiust constitute a proper matter for
stockholder action. To be timely, a stockholdedsice shall be delivered to the Secretary at thecypal executive offices of the Corporation
not later than the close of business on the nitletiay nor earlier than the close of business erotte hundred twentieth day prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding year's annual medpngvided, however, that in the event that the d&the annual meeting is more than thirty
days before or more than seventy days after sucivensary date, notice by the stockholder mustddedivered not earlier than the close of
business on the one hundred twentieth day prisutt annual meeting and not later than the clobeigihess on the later of the ninetieth day
prior to such annual meeting or the tenth day feithg the day on which public announcement of thie dé such meeting is first made by the
Corporation). In no event shall the public announeet of an adjournment or postponement of an armeating commence a new time
period (or extend any time period) for the givirfgaastockholder’s notice as described above. Stattksolder’s notice shall set forth: (A) as
to each person whom the stockholder proposes tanadenfor election as a director all informatiofating to such person that is required to
be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for elentdf directors in an election contest, or is otlise required, in each case pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adi9¥4, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (and sucsopés written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee andimges a director if
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elected); (B) as to any other business that thekktwder proposes to bring before the meetingjef bescription of the business desired to be
brought before the meeting, the text of the proposhusiness (including the text of any resolusigmoposed for consideration and in the
event that such business includes a proposal to@the by-laws of the Corporation, the languag#efproposed amendment), the reasons
for conducting such business at the meeting andvatgrial interest in such business of such stdden@nd the beneficial owner, if any, on
whose behalf the proposal is made; and (C) asetsttickholder giving the notice and the benefioiaher, if any, on whose behalf the
nomination or proposal is made (1) the name andeaddf such stockholder, as they appear on thgo€ation’s books, and of such
beneficial owner, (2) the class and number of shafeapital stock of the Corporation which are edibeneficially and of record by such
stockholder and such beneficial owner, (3) a reprigion that the stockholder is a holder of readrstock of the Corporation entitled to vi
at such meeting and intends to appear in persog proxy at the meeting to propose such businessmination, and (4) a representation
whether the stockholder or the beneficial owneanij, intends or is part of a group which intendgq deliver a proxy statement and/or form
of proxy to holders of at least the percentagdnef@orporation’s outstanding capital stock requitedpprove or adopt the proposal or elect
the nominee and/or (y) otherwise to solicit proXiesn stockholders in support of such proposalanimation. The foregoing notice
requirements shall be deemed satisfied by a stéd&hd the stockholder has notified the Corporatad his or her intention to present a
proposal at an annual meeting in compliance witteRda-8 (or any successor thereof) promulgate@utind Exchange Act and such
stockholder’s proposal has been included in a patatement that has been prepared by the Corpotatisolicit proxies for such annual
meeting. The Corporation may require any proposedinee to furnish such other information as it megsonably require to determine the
eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve airector of the Corporation.

(i) Notwithstanding anything in the second wate of paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 8 to¢batrary, in the event
that the number of directors to be elected to tharB of Directors of the Corporation at an annuaétimg is increased and the stockholders of
the Corporation are entitled to fill such vacanéreaccordance with the Restated Certificate obtporation and these Hgws and there is r
public announcement by the Corporation naming timainees for the additional directorships at least lbundred days prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meetind,a stockholder’s notice required by this Sec8Bichall also be considered timely, but
only with respect to nominees for the additionaédiorships, if it shall be delivered to the Seangtt the principal executive offices of the
Corporation not later than the close of businestherienth day following the day on which such pubhnouncement is first made by the
Corporation.

(b) Special Meetings of Stockholde

Only such business shall be conducted at a speaeialing of stockholders as shall have been brdugflore the meeting
pursuant to the Corporation’s notice of meetingmiwtions of persons for election to the Board o&Btors may be made at a special
meeting of stockholders at which directors areg®lected pursuant to the Corporation’s notice eétimg (x) by or at the direction of the
Board of Directors or (y) provided that the Boafdirectors has determined that directors shakleeted at such meeting, by any
stockholder of the Corporation who is a stockholafarecord at the time the notice provided forhistSection




8 is delivered to the Secretary of the Corporatwimg is entitled to vote at the meeting and uparhslection and who complies with the
notice procedures set forth in this Section 8himévent the Corporation calls a special meetirggafkholders for the purpose of electing one
or more directors to the Board of Directors, anghsstockholder entitled to vote in such electiomlioéctors may nominate a person or
persons (as the case may be) for election to sositign(s) as specified in the Corporation’s noti€eneeting, if the stockholder’s notice
required by paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 8lisha delivered to the Secretary at the principaaaitive offices of the Corporation not earlier
than the close of business on the one hundred igtlertay prior to such special meeting and not ldian the close of business on the later of
the ninetieth day prior to such special meetinthertenth day following the day on which public aancement is first made of the date of the
special meeting and of the nominees proposed bRdlaed of Directors to be elected at such meetimgo event shall the public
announcement of an adjournment or postponemenspécial meeting commence a new time period (@mekany time period) for the givi

of a stockholder’s notice as described above.

(c) General

(i) Only such persons who are nominated in ataoce with the procedures set forth in this Sedishall be eligible to
be elected at an annual or special meeting of btidkrs of the Corporation to serve as directotsany such business shall be conducted at
a meeting of stockholders as shall have been btdagghre the meeting in accordance with the procesiset forth in this Section 8. Excep
otherwise provided by law, the chairman of the rimgeshall have the power and duty (A) to deternviiiether a nomination or any business
proposed to be brought before the meeting was magdmposed, as the case may be, in accordanceaheithrocedures set forth in this
Section 8 (including whether the stockholder ordfieial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomioator proposal is made solicited (or is
part of a group which solicited) or did not so siblias the case may be, proxies in support of stmtkholder’'s nominee or proposal in
compliance with such stockholder’s representat®reguired by clause (a)(ii)(C)(4) of this Sect®and (B) if any proposed nomination or
business was not made or proposed in compliandethig Section 8, to declare that such nominatiail e disregarded or that such
proposed business shall not be transacted. Notaittimg the foregoing provisions of this Sectioiif e stockholder (or a qualified
representative of the stockholder) does not appetiie annual or special meeting of stockholdeth®{Corporation to present a nomination
or business, such nomination shall be disregardddsach proposed business shall not be transawiggithstanding that proxies in respec
such vote may have been received by the Corporation

(i) For purposes of this Section 8, “public anncement” shall include disclosure in a pressasdeaeported by the Dow
Jones News Service, Associated Press or comparatisnal news service or in a document publiclgdiby the Corporation with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant tad®et8, 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

(i)  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisionéthis Section 8, a stockholder shall also compighall applicable
requirements of the Exchange Act and the rulesregdlations thereunder with respect to the mastergorth in this Section 8. Nothing in t
Section 8 shall be deemed to affect any rightsoffgtockholders to request inclusion of proposalthe Corporation’s proxy statement
pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act




or (B) of the holders of any series of Preferreac&tto elect directors pursuant to any applicabtwigions of the Restated certificate of
incorporation.

SECTION 9. _Voting Each stockholder of the Corporation shall, exespbtherwise provided by statute or in these s lar
in the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of @arporation, at every meeting of the stockholderntitled to one vote in person or by
proxy for each share of the capital stock of thepBmation registered in his name on the books ®fCQbrporation on the date fixed pursuar
Section 6 of Article VII of these by-laws as theaad date for the determination of stockholdergtledtto vote at such meeting. Persons
holding in a fiduciary capacity stock having votinghts shall be entitled to vote the shares sd,laid persons whose stock having voting
rights is pledged shall be entitled to vote, uniaghe transfer by the pledgor on the books hdl Baae expressly empowered the pledgee to
vote thereon, in which case only the pledgee, ®phdxy, may represent said stock and vote ther@aynvote on stock may be given by the
stockholder entitled thereto in person or by hisxgr provided, however, that no proxy shall be doda after three years from its date unless
said proxy provides for a longer period. At all rilegs of the stockholders, all matters (except ¢éhgyecified in Section 4 of Article 11l and
Article XI of these by-laws, and except also indpkcases where other provision is made by statune except as otherwise provided in the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation) shall beided by the vote of a majority in interest of theckholders present in person or by proxy
entitled to vote thereat, a quorum being presextept as otherwise provided by statute, the votargnquestion need not be by ballot. On a
vote by ballot each ballot shall be signed by tioelsholder voting, or in his name by his proxyhiéte be such proxy, and shall state the
number of shares voted by him.

SECTION 10. _Inspectors of Electio®n each matter or election at each meeting ostiiekholders where a vote by ballot is
taken, the proxies and ballots shall be receivedentaken in charge, and all questions touchiagjthalification of voters and the validity of
proxies and the acceptance or rejection of votes| be decided by two inspectors of election whallsbe appointed by the Chairman of such
meeting. The inspectors of election need not bekkmlders. No candidate for the office of directball act as inspector at any election of
directors. Inspectors shall count and ascertaimtimber of shares voted; and shall declare thétrefstine election or of the voting as the ¢
may be; and shall make out a certificate accorglirgghting the number of shares issued and outsiguachd entitled to vote at such electiol
on such matters and the number of shares voteti@mdoted. Inspectors shall be sworn to faithfgérform their duties and shall certify to
the returns in writing. They shall hold office fraime date of their appointment until their successtall have been appointed and qualified.

ARTICLE Il

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

SECTION 1. _General Power3he property, affairs and business of the Cofpmrashall be managed by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Number, Qualifications and Term©fdfice . The Board of Directors shall consist of not lésm five nor more
than ten persons, the exact number to be




fixed from time to time exclusively by the Boardifrectors pursuant to a resolution adopted by pority of the Board of Directors.
Directors need not be stockholders. The directioadl e elected as provided in the Restated Ceatéiof Incorporation and each director
shall hold office until his successor shall haverbelected and shall qualify, or until his deathuotil he shall resign or shall have been
removed.

SECTION 3. [RESERVED]

SECTION 4. _Election of Director€Except as otherwise provided in the RestatedfiCate of Incorporation, directors shall be
elected by a plurality of the votes cast by theldtolders entitled to vote for the election of sdafectors.

SECTION 5. _Quorum and Manner of Actingxcept as otherwise provided by statute, thedRedtCertificate of Incorporatic
or these by-laws, one-third of the whole Board a&Etors (but not less than three) shall be requioeconstitute a quorum for the transaction
of business at any meeting, and the act of a ntgjofithe directors present at any meeting at whicjuorum is present shall be the act of the
Board of Directors. In the absence of a quorumagority of the directors present may adjourn anetimg from time to time until a quorum
be had. Notice of any adjourned meeting need bengiwly to those directors who were not preseahgtmeeting at which the adjournment
was taken, provided the time and place of the adgaimeeting were announced at the meeting at whechdjournment was taken. The
directors shall act only as a board and the ind@&idlirectors shall have no power as such.

SECTION 6. _Place of Meeting, et€he Board of Directors may hold its meetingsswath place or places within or without
State of Delaware as the Board of Directors mamftione to time determine or as shall be specifiefixed in the respective notices or
waivers of notice thereof.

SECTION 7. _First MeetingAfter each annual election of directors and withireasonable time thereafter, the Board of
Directors shall meet for the purpose of organizattbe election of officers and the transactionthier business at such hours and place as
shall be convenient. Notice of such meeting shaljiven as hereinafter provided for special mestwigthe Board of Directors or in a cons
and waiver of notice thereof signed by all the clives.

SECTION 8. _Regular Meeting&Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shalheld at such place and at such times as th
Board of Directors shall from time to time by rag@n determine or as shall be specified in theidéodf Meeting. If any day fixed for a
regular meeting shall be a legal holiday at theglahere the meeting is to be held, then the mgethich would otherwise be held on that
day shall be held at the same hour on the nexesgiiitg business day not a legal holiday. Notichefregular meetings need not be given.

SECTION 9. _Special Meetings; Notic€pecial meetings of the Board of Directors shalheld whenever called by the
Chairman, the President or by one of the directdadice of each such meeting shall be mailed td efirector, addressed to him at his
residence or usual place of business, at leastiys before the day on which the meeting is toddé, lor shall be sent to him at such plact
telegraph, cable, telex, facsimile transmitter, &hmr other electronic transmission, or be delagepersonally or by telephone, not later than
the day before




the day on which the meeting is to be held. Eveghsotice shall state the time and place of thetimg but need not state the purpose
thereof except as otherwise in these by-laws athtute expressly provided. Notice of any meetinthe Board of Directors need not be
given to any director, however, if waived by himwmiting or by telegraph, cable, telex, facsimil@rntsmitter, e-mail or other electronic
transmission, whether before or after such medtebeld or, except as otherwise provided by lalweishall be present at the meeting; and,
except as otherwise provided by law, any meetintp@Board of Directors shall be a legal meetinthout any notice thereof having been
given if all of the directors shall be present gadr

SECTION 10. _OrganizationAt each meeting of the Board of Directors, thai@han or, in his absence, the President, or, in
the absence of both of them, a director chosenrhgjarity of the directors present shall act asi@ian. The Secretary or, in his absence, an
Assistant Secretary or, in the absence of botlStwetary and Assistant Secretaries, any persavirapg by the Chairman shall act as
secretary of the meeting.

SECTION 11. _Order of Businesat all meetings of the Board of Directors busiehall be transacted in the order determ
by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 12. _Resignation#\ny director of the Corporation may resign at éinye by giving notice in writing or by electroi
transmission to the Chairman, the President dieédSecretary of the Corporation. The resignatioanyfdirector shall take effect at the time
of the receipt of such notice or at any later tspecified therein; and, unless otherwise spectfiedein, the acceptance of such resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 13. _Vacancies
(&) Vacancies in the Board of Directors shalfilbed in accordance with the Restated Certificaténcorporation.

(b) A director who resigns, retires, or doesstand for reelection may, in the discretion of Board of Directors, be elected a
Director Emeritus. A Director Emeritus shall reaieimbursement for reasonable expenses for atieadd meetings of the Board to which
he is invited. Such attendance shall be in a ctingutapacity and he shall not be entitled to \@mtbave any duties or powers of a Director of
the Corporation.

SECTION 14. _Regular Stipulated Compensationfeewk Each director shall be paid such regular stipal@ompensation, if
any, as shall be fixed by the Board of Directord/ansuch fee, if any, for each meeting of the BlazfrDirectors which he shall attend as s
be fixed by the Board of Directors and in additsuth transportation and other expenses actuallyried by him in connection with services
to the Corporation.

SECTION 15. _Action by ConsenAny action required or permitted to be takenlig Board of Directors or any Committee
thereof may be taken without a meeting if all meralmd the Board of Directors or such Committeethescase may be, consent thereto in
writing, or by electronic transmission and the imgtor writings or electronic transmission or tramissions are filed with the minutes of the
proceedings of the Board of Directors or such Cotte®mj as the case may be.




SECTION 16. _Telephonic MeetindJnless restricted by the Certificate of Incorgimta any one or more members of the
Board of Directors or any Committee thereof maytipgmate in a meeting of the Board of Directorssach Committee by means of a
conference telephone or similar communicationsggant by means of which all persons participatmthe meeting can hear each other.
Participation by such means shall constitute pres@nperson at a meeting.

ARTICLE IV.

COMMITTEES.

SECTION 1. _CommitteesThe Board of Directors may by resolution or resiohs, passed by a majority of the whole Board,
designate one or more Committees, each Committeertsist of two or more of the directors of the @oation, which, to the extent
permitted by law and provided for in said resolat@ resolutions or in these by-laws, shall have may exercise the powers of the Board in
the management of the business and affairs of thpdtation. Such committees shall have such namamies as may be stated in these by-
laws, or as may be determined from time to timedsplution adopted by the Board. The CommitteeamRittees appointed by the Board
shall be subject to the supervision and directith@ Board of Directors.

In the absence or disqualification of a member cbmmittee, the member or members present at amtimgeand not
disqualified from voting, whether or not such memtbemembers constitute a quorum, may unanimoyghpiat another member of the
board of directors to act at the meeting in thelaf any such absent or disqualified member.

SECTION 2. _Term of Office and Vacancidsach member of a Committee shall continue irceffintil a director to succeed
him shall have been elected and shall have quaifieuntil his death or until he shall have resigjor shall have been removed. Any vacancy
in a Committee shall be filled by the vote of a onéty of the whole Board of Directors at any reguda special meeting thereof.

SECTION 3. _OrganizationExcept as otherwise provided in these by-lanes Ghairman of each Committee shall be
designated by the Board of Directors. The Chairofaaach Committee may designate a secretary of @aah Committee. In the absence
from any meeting of any Committee of its Chairmait®secretary such Committee shall appoint a teamy Chairman or secretary, as the
case may be, of the meeting unless otherwise pedvilithese by-laws. Each Committee shall keegardeof its acts and proceedings and
report the same from time to time to the Board wéE&tors.

SECTION 4. _Resignation®Any member of a Committee may resign at any tipgiving notice in writing or by electronic
transmission to the Chairman, President or Segrefahe Corporation. Such resignation shall taftect at the time of the receipt of such
notice or at any later time specified therein, amdess otherwise specified therein, the acceptahsach resignation shall not be necessary to
make it effective.
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SECTION 5. _RemovalAny member of a Committee may be removed fronth stemmittee with or without cause at any time
by the affirmative vote of a majority of the whdeard of Directors given at any regular meetingioany special meeting called for the
purpose.

SECTION 6. _MeetingsRegular meetings of each Committee, of which otice shall be necessary, shall be held on such
and at such place as shall be fixed by a resolatitupted by the vote of a majority of all the memsha such Committee. Special meetings of
each Committee may be called by the Chairman df &@nmittee or by the Chairman, President or Segretf the Corporation. Notice of
each special meeting of the Committee shall belsentail to each member thereof, addressed to himsaesidence or usual place of
business, not later than the day before the daytoch the meeting is to be held, or shall be semtaich such member by telegraph, cable,
telex, facsimile transmitter, e-mail or other etenic transmission, or delivered to him personalyy telephone, not less than three (3) hours
before the time set for the meeting. Every suclcaathall state the time and place, but need at¢ she purposes, of the meeting except as
otherwise in these by laws or by statute exprgsslyided. Notice of any such meeting need not kergto any member of a Committee,
however, if waived by him in writing or by telegtaable, telex, facsimile transmitterpeil or other electronic transmission, whether be
or after such meeting be held, or except as otlserpiovided by law, if he shall attend such meeitingerson, and, except as otherwise
provided by law, any meeting of a Committee shalbdegal meeting without any notice thereof hawiagn given if all of the members of
Committee shall be present thereat.

SECTION 7. _Quorum and Manner of Actingnless otherwise provided by resolution of theuioof Directors, a number of
Directors equal to one less than a majority ofrthmber of Directors serving on any Committee, tnitless than two Directors, shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of busireskthe act of a majority of those present at atimg at which a quorum is present shall be
the act of such Committee. The members of each Gtiemshall act only as a Committee and the indiaidnembers shall have no power as
such.

SECTION 8. [RESERVED]

SECTION 9. _FeeskEach member of a Committee shall be paid suchffeay, as shall be fixed by the Board of Direstdor
each meeting of such Committee which he shall ditend in addition such transportation and otheeages actually incurred by him in
connection with his services as such member.

ARTICLE V.

OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS: POWERS AND DUTIES.

SECTION 1. _Officers The elected officers of the Corporation shalbl@hairman and a President (each of whom shall be a
director), a Chief Executive Officer, a Chief Optérg Officer, such Executive Vice Presidents, s8elmior Vice Presidents and other Vice
Presidents as the Board may elect, a Controll€reasurer, and a Secretary. The Board of Directoesty Committee constituted pursuant to
Article IV of these by-laws with power for
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the purpose may also appoint one or more Assi§tantrollers, one or more Assistant Treasurers,aomaore Assistant Secretaries, and such
other officers and agents as, from time to timey ay@pear to be necessary or advisable in the comnddee affairs of the Corporation. Any
number of offices may be held by the same persarep that any person serving as Chairman or R¥asihall not also serve as Secretary.

SECTION 2. _Term of Office: Vacancieall elected officers shall serve for a term okgrear measured by the length of time
between the organizational meeting of the Boamidaéctors following the annual meeting of shareleotdat which the officer is elected and
the organizational meeting in the succeeding ygdess the officer is elected after the organirationeeting, in which case the term of the
officer shall also expire at the next organizationaeting of the Board of Directors. If such elentshall not occur at the organizational
meeting, such election shall occur as soon asipabt¢ thereafter. Each officer shall hold officgyountil the expiration of his or her oryeat
term or until his or her earlier resignation or teral by the Board of Directors. If any vacancy asdn any office, the Board of Directors, or,
in the case of an appointive office, any Committesstituted pursuant to Article IV of these layvs with power for that purpose, may elec
appoint a successor to fill such vacancy for tmeaiader of the one-year term.

SECTION 3. _Removal of Elected OfficerAny elected officer may be removed at any tiniee for or without cause, by
affirmative vote of a majority of the whole Boarfiirectors, at any meeting called for the purpose.

SECTION 4. _ChairmanThe Chairman shall function under the generaéstigion of the Board of Directors and shall penmfi
such duties and exercise such powers as from tirtime may be assigned to him by the Board. Duaimg period in which there is a vacancy
in the office of the President, the Chairman shmdhding action by the Board, perform the dutie$ @xercise the powers of the President.
Chairman shall preside, when present, at all mgetiri the stockholders and of the Board of Direscand shall see to it that appropriate
agendas are developed for such meetings.

SECTION 5. _PresidenfThe President shall perform such duties and eegtich powers as from time to time may be
assigned to him by the Board or the Chairman. Atr#guest of the Chairman or in case of the Chailsrebsence or inability to act, the
President shall perform the duties of the Chairiauash, when so acting, shall have the powers of saatl be subject to the restrictions upon,
the Chairman.

SECTION 6. _Chief Executive OfficeiThe Chief Executive Officer shall be designatexif time to time by a resolution
adopted by the Board of Directors and shall beceithe Chairman or the President. He shall haugestito the direction and control of the
Board, general and active supervision over thenassi and affairs of the Corporation and over ¥eise officers. He shall perform all duties
incident to his position and such other duties ag from time to time be assigned to him by the Bo#te shall see that all orders of the
Board shall be carried into effect. He may sigrecene and deliver all deeds, mortgages, contrsitisk certificates and other instruments in
the name of the Corporation, except in cases wihersigning, execution or delivery thereof shalebpressly delegated by the Board or by a
duly authorized Committee of the Board or by thegdaws to some other officer or agent of the
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Corporation or where any of them shall be requingdaw otherwise to be signed, executed or deliele may cause the seal of the
Corporation to be affixed to any documents the atien of which on behalf of the Corporation shallvk been duly authorized. He shall have
authority to cause the employment or appointmesuch employees and agents of the Corporationeggrtper conduct of operations may
require, to fix their compensation, subject to phevisions of these blaws, to remove or suspend any employee or agefgriauthority of a
officer to him, to suspend for cause, pending faelon by the authority which shall have electedgpointed him, any officer subordinate to
him, and to have all the duties and exercise alpibwers usually pertaining to the office held iy Chief Executive Officer of a Corporation,
except as otherwise provided in these by-laws.

SECTION 7. _Chief Operating OfficeA Chief Operating Officer may be designated frimme to time by a resolution adopted
by the Board of Directors, and shall be subje¢h&odirection and control of the Board, and thee€Rixecutive Officer. He shall directly
report to and assist the Chief Executive Officeth@ general and active supervision over the basiaed affairs of the Corporation and over
its several officers, and shall perform all dufiesident to his position and such other duties ag from time to time be assigned to him by
the Board, or the Chief Executive Officer.

SECTION 8. _Vice President®Jnder the direction of the Chief Executive Office the Chief Operating Officer, the Executive
Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, and ViesiBents of the Corporation shall perform all sdaties and exercise all such powers as
may be provided by these lgws or as may from time to time be determinedhgyBoard of Directors, any Committee constitutecspant tc
Article IV of these by-laws with power for the page, the Chief Executive Officer, or the Chief Gytimig Officer.

SECTION 9. _Controller The Controller shall be the chief accountingasfiof the Corporation and shall see that the atdsou
of the Corporation and its subsidiary corporatiaresmaintained in accordance with generally accepteounting principles; and all decisi
affecting the accounts shall be subject to his@ggiror concurrence. He shall supervise the maohkeeping all vouchers for payments by
the Corporation and its subsidiary corporations @hdther documents relating to such paymentd| stzeive and consolidate all operating
and financial statements of the Corporation, itsoes departments, divisions and subsidiary cotjpmma; shall have supervision of the books
of account of the Corporation and its subsidiampoaations, their arrangement and classificatibiajlssupervise the accounting practices of
the Corporation and its subsidiary corporations stmall have charge of all matters relating to tiaxat

SECTION 10. _Assistant Controllerét the request of the Controller or in his abseacdisability the Assistant Controller
designated by him or (failing such request or deeign) the Assistant Controller or other officesajnated by the President shall perform all
the duties of the Controller and, when so actihgllhave all the powers of, and be subject tohalrestrictions upon, the Controller.

SECTION 11. _TreasureiThe Treasurer shall be the fiscal officer of @@rporation. He shall have the care and custodyl of
moneys, funds and securities of the Corporatiod,snall cause the same to be deposited in suchdravénks or depositories as
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from time to time may be designated, pursuant ti@® 4 and Section 5 of Article VI of these by-Ewehall advise upon all terms of credit
granted by the Corporation and its subsidiary catians, respectively; shall be responsible forabkection of their accounts, and shall
cause to be recorded, daily, a statement of a#lipezand disbursements of the Corporation arslitsidiary corporations, in order that prc
entries may be made in the books of account; aalil Iséive power to give proper receipts or dischaufge all payments to the Corporation.
shall also have power to sign any or all certisabf stock of the Corporation.

SECTION 12. _Assistant Treasuredst the request of the Treasurer or in his absenahsability the Assistant Treasurer
designated by him or (failing such request or deeign) the Assistant Treasurer or other officesigieated by the President shall perform all
the duties of the Treasurer and, when so actirall Bhve the powers of, and be subject to all #srictions upon, the Treasurer.

SECTION 13. _SecretaryThe Secretary shall attend to the giving of r@t€ all meetings of stockholders and of the Bazrd
Directors and shall record all the proceedinghefrneetings thereof in books to be kept for thappse. He shall have charge of the corpc
seal and have authority to attest any and allunsgnts or writings to which the same may be affix¢el shall be custodian of all books,
documents, papers and records of the Corporati@epe those for which some other officer or agengroperly accountable. He shall have
authority to sign any or all certificates of staufkhe Corporation, and, in general, shall havehalduties and powers usually appertaining to
the office of secretary of a corporation.

SECTION 14. _Assistant Secretarigst the request of the Secretary or in his absencisability the Assistant Secretary
designated by him or (failing such request or desiign) the Assistant Secretary or other officesigigated by the President shall perform all
the duties of the Secretary and, when so actiral Bave all the powers of, and be subject tohalrestrictions upon, the Secretary.

SECTION 15. _Additional Duties and Poweis addition to the foregoing especially enumedataties and powers, the seve
officers of the Corporation shall perform such ottleties and exercise such further powers as maydaded in these by-laws or as may
from time to time be determined by the Board ofebiors, or any Committee constituted pursuant talerlV of these by-laws with power
for the purpose, or by any competent superior effic

SECTION 16. _Compensatiomhe compensation of all officers, except asststfficers, of the Corporation shall be fixed,
from time to time by the Board of Directors, or &dgmmittee constituted pursuant to Article IV oésle by-laws with power for the purpose.

SECTION 17. _Resignationg\ny officer may resign at any time by giving vtei notice to the Board of Directors, the
Chairman, the President, the Chief Executive Offittee Chief Operating Officer, or the Secretarpy/Auch resignation shall take effect at
the date of receipt of such notice or at any latee specified therein; and unless otherwise sigattherein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it eéfec
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ARTICLE VI.

CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS, BANK ACCOUNTS, ETC.

SECTION 1. _Contracts, etc., How Executdthe Board of Directors, or any Committee congtitipursuant to Article 1V of
these by-laws with power for the purpose, excepn disese bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any offimeofficers, agent or agen
of the Corporation to enter into any contract cg@are and deliver any instrument in the name ofanbehalf of the Corporation, and such
authority may be general or confined to specifstances; and, unless so authorized by the Bodbirectors or by such Committee or by
these by-laws, no officer, agent, or employee diale any power or authority to bind the Corporatig any contract or agreement or to
pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniafdr any purpose or to any amount.

SECTION 2. _LoansNo loan shall be contracted on behalf of the Gmation, and no negotiable paper shall be issudéd in
name, unless authorized by the Board of Directoksyany Committee constituted pursuant to Artlisleof these by-laws with power for the
purpose. When so authorized, the Chairman, Presi@aref Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officar a Vice President or the Secretary
or the Treasurer or the Assistant Treasurer oCthigoration may effect loans and advances at amy fbr the Corporation from any bank,
trust company or other institution, or from anyrfircorporation or individual and for such loans adgances may make, execute and deliver
promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedoittse Corporation and, when authorized as afideas security for the payment of any
and all loans, advances, indebtedness and liakilitf the Corporation, may mortgage, pledge, hygmate or transfer any real or personal
property at any time held by the Corporation anth&d end execute instruments of mortgage or pledgtherwise transfer such property.
Such authority may be general or confined to speriftances.

SECTION 3. _Checks, Drafts, etéll checks, drafts or other orders for the paytramoney, notes, or other evidences of
indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporaiwil be signed by such officer or officers, enypl or employees, of the Corporation as
shall from time to time be determined by resolutidéithe Board of Directors or by any Committee ditnted pursuant to Article IV of these
by-laws with power for the purpose, or by any dfior officers authorized pursuant to Section &ection 5 of this Article to designate
depositaries or to open bank accounts.

SECTION 4. _DepositsAll funds of the Corporation shall be depositeshi time to time to the credit of the Corporatian i
such banks, trust companies or other depositosi¢iseaBoard of Directors or any Committee congidytursuant to Article IV of these by-
laws with power for the purpose may from time todidesignate, or as may be designated by an officgfficers of the Corporation to whc
such power may be delegated by the Board of Directw by such Committee, and for the purpose ol sleposit, the President, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer,aWice President, or the Treasurer, or an AssiStegdsurer, or the Secretary, or an Assit
Secretary, may endorse, assign and deliver chdckits and other orders for the payment of moneighvare payable to the order of the
Corporation.
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SECTION 5. _General and Special Bank Accouiiise Board of Directors or any Committee constiipursuant to Article IV
of these by-laws with power for the purpose, or afficer or officers of the Corporation to whom kymowers may be delegated by the Board
of Directors, or by such Committee, may from tirogine authorize the opening and keeping with dwantks, trust companies or other
depositaries as it, or they, may designate of gererd special bank accounts, and may make suchesp@es and regulations with respect
thereto, not inconsistent with the provisions @&fgh by-laws, as it, or they, may deem expedient.

SECTION 6. _ProxiesExcept as otherwise in these by-laws or in theté®ed Certificate of Incorporation of the Corpumat
provided, and unless otherwise provided by resmutif the Board of Directors, or of any Committeastituted pursuant to Article IV of
these by-laws with power for the purpose, the Ghair or President or Chief Executive Officer mayfrime to time appoint an attorney or
attorneys or agent or agents, of the Corporatiothe name and on behalf of the Corporation tottesvotes which the Corporation may be
entitled to cast as a stockholder or otherwisenin@ther corporation any of whose stock or otheugties may be held by the Corporation, at
meetings of the holders of the stock or other stesrof such other corporation, or to consent iitimg to any action by such other
corporation, and may instruct the person or persoreppointed as to the manner of casting suclswtgiving such consent, and may
execute or cause to be executed in the name ahdhaif of the Corporation and under its corporatd,or otherwise, all such written prox
or other instruments as he may deem necessarypempin the premises.

SECTION 7. _Independent Public Accountarithe stockholders of the Corporation shall, ahesmmual meeting, ratify the
appointment of the independent public accountamtsenby the Audit Committee of the Board of Direstfor the purpose of auditing and
certifying the annual financial statements of theg@ration for its current fiscal year as sentttekholders or otherwise published by the
Corporation. If the stockholders shall fail or deelto ratify such independent public accountani$ the independent public accountants so
ratified by the stockholders shall decline to actesign, or for some other reason be unable timpertheir duties, the Audit Committee of |
Board of Directors shall appoint other indepengritilic accountants to stand until the next Annuaklihg of Stockholder to perform the
duties herein provided.

ARTICLE VII.

SHARES AND THEIR TRANSFER.

SECTION 1. _SharesThe shares of the Corporation shall be repredénteertificates or, if so resolved by the Boafd o
Directors in accordance with these by-laws, shallibcertificated. Each registered holder of shanesn request to the Corporation, shall be
provided with a certificate of stock, representing number of shares owned by such holder. Absspeeific request for such a certificate by
the registered owner or transferee thereof, alleshshall be uncertificated upon the original isseathereof by the Corporation or upon the
surrender of the certificate representing sucheshtr the Corporation. Certificates for sharediefdapital stock of the Corporation shall be in
such form as shall be approved by the Board ofdbars or by any Committee constituted pursuantrticke 1V of these by-laws with power
for the purpose. They shall be numbered, shalifgente number of shares held by the holder
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thereof and shall be signed by the Chairman, Peasidr a Vice President and by the Treasurer dksaistant Treasurer or the Secretary or
an Assistant Secretary of the Corporation, andéa of the Corporation shall be affixed therettnér® any such certificate is countersigned
by a transfer agent, other than the Corporatiats@mployee, or by a registrar, other than thep@Gation or its employee, any other signa
and the seal of the Corporation on such certificadg be a facsimile, engraved, stamped or printedny case any such officer, transfer a
or registrar who has signed or whose facsimileatigne has been placed upon any such certificatehshee ceased to be such officer, tran
agent or registrar before such certificate is idsitanay be issued by the Corporation with the saffiect as if such officer, transfer agent, or
registrar were such officer, transfer agent orgiegr at the date of its issue.

SECTION 2. _Transfer of Stockiransfers of shares of the capital stock of tbepG@ration shall be made only on the books of
the Corporation by the holder thereof, or by hieraey thereunto authorized by a power of attoihgly executed and filed with the Secret
of the Corporation, or a transfer agent of the Goafion, if any, and on surrender of the certificat certificates for such shares, properly
endorsed, or upon receipt of proper transfer isisas from the owner of uncertificated sharesypon the escheat of said shares under the
laws of any state of the United States. A persomtinse name shares of stock stand on the booke @arporation shall be deemed the
owner thereof as regards the Corporation, providatiwhenever any transfer of shares shall be rfaadmllateral security, and not
absolutely, such fact, if known to the Secretaryoasaid transfer agent, shall be so expressdikieitry of transfer.

SECTION 3. _Addresses of StockholdeEsach stockholder shall designate to the Secreffaitye Corporation an address at
which notices of meetings and all other corporatiéices may be served or mailed to him, and if dogldolder shall fail to designate such
address, corporate notices may be served uponyhimeai directed to him at his last known post affaddress as it appears on the records of
the Corporation.

SECTION 4. _Lost, Stolen, Destroyed and Mutile@ertificates To deal with the eventuality of lost, stolen, tdeged and
mutilated certificates of stock the Board of Dimstor any Committee constituted pursuant to Aatl®l of these by-laws with power for the
purpose may establish by appropriate resolutioob sules and regulations as they deem expediemreconimg the issue to such holder of
uncertificated shares or, if requested by suchdrol new certificate or certificates of stock luiiing, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, such rules and regulations as they negyrdexpedient with respect to the proof of lossftthr destruction and the surrender of
mutilated certificates and the requirements akeajiving of a bond or bonds to indemnify the Cogtion against any claim which may be
made against it on account of the alleged los$, ¢melestruction of any such certificate. The feoldf any stock of the Corporation shall
immediately notify the Corporation and/or the appiate transfer agent of such stock of any logsft tdestruction or mutilation of the
certificate therefor.

SECTION 5. _Transfer Agent and Registr®eqgulations The Corporation shall, if and whenever the BazrDirectors or an
Committee constituted pursuant to Article IV ofskeby-laws with power for the purpose shall someitee, maintain one or more transfer
offices or agencies, each in charge of a trangfentadesignated by the Board of Directors or bynsbommittee, where the shares of the
capital stock of the Corporation shall be directly
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transferable, and also one or more registry offieash in charge of a registrar designated by tredBof Directors or by such Committee,
where such shares of stock shall be registerednamertificate for shares of the capital stockhef Corporation, in respect of which a
registrar and transfer agent shall have been datsidgnshall be valid unless countersigned by siatster agent and registered by such
registrar. A firm may act at the same time as bathsfer agent and registrar of the Corporatiore Bbard of Directors or any such
Committee may also make such additional rules agdlations as it may deem expedient concerningsthe, transfer and registration of
uncertificated shares or certificates for sharethefcapital stock of the Corporation.

SECTION 6. _Fixing Record Datda) In order that the Corporation may determhireestockholders entitled to notice of or to
vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjo@mmnthereof, the Board of Directors may fix a rekdate, which record date shall not
precede the date upon which the resolution fixiregrecord date is adopted by the Board of Directord which record date shall not be more
than sixty nor less than ten days before the daseah meeting. If no record date is fixed by theaBl of Directors, the record date for
determining stockholders entitled to notice ofmwote at a meeting of stockholders shall be atkbse of business on the day next preceding
the day on which notice is given, or, if noticeMaived, at the close of business on the day nextgating the day on which the meeting is
held. A determination of stockholders of recordttet to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stacklers shall apply to any adjournment of
the meeting; provided, however, that the Board iné®@ors may fix a new record date for the adjodrmeeting.

(b) In order that the Corporation may determinestoekholders entitled to receive payment of amydeind or other distribution
or allotment of any rights or the stockholderstigdito exercise any rights in respect of any ckaagnversion or exchange of stock, or for
the purpose of any other lawful action, the BodrBioectors may fix a record date, which recordedstall not precede the date upon which
the resolution fixing the record date is adoptexdi which record date shall be not more than sigtysdorior to such action. If no record dat
fixed, the record date for determining stockholdersany such purpose shall be at the close ofnlegsi on the day on which the board of
directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

SECTION 7. _Examination of Books by StockholdeFsie Board of Directors or any Committee constidiupursuant to Article
IV of these by-laws with power for the purpose ghalbject to the laws of the State of Delawareghaower to determine, from time to time,
whether and to what extent and under what conditéomd regulations the accounts and books of thpdZation, or any of them, shall be of
to the inspection of the stockholders; and no dtotder shall have any right to inspect any accoombk or document of the Corporation,
except as conferred by the laws of the State cAWate, unless and until authorized so to do byluésa of the Board of Directors or any
Committee constituted pursuant to Article IV ofsheby-laws with power for the purpose or of thekitmlders of the Corporation.
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ARTICLE VIII.

DIVIDENDS, SURPLUS, ETC.

Subject to the provisions of the Restated Certificd Incorporation and any restrictions imposedtagute, the Board of
Directors may declare dividends from the surplughefCorporation or from the net profits arisingrfrits business, whenever, and in such
amounts as, in its opinion, the condition of thfaieé of the Corporation shall render advisableh#f date appointed for the payment of any
dividend shall in any year fall on a legal holidhgn the dividend payable on such date shall balgayn the next succeeding business day.
The Board of Directors in its discretion may frome to time set aside from such surplus or netifgrefich sum or sums as it, in its absolute
discretion, may think proper as a working capitaa® a reserve fund to meet contingencies, oh®ptrpose of maintaining or increasing the
property or business of the Corporation, or for ather purpose it may think conducive to the betgrests of the Corporation. All such
surplus or net profits, until actually declareddimidends, or used and applied as aforesaid, bhalleemed to have been so set aside by the
Board for one or more of said purposes.

ARTICLE IX.

SEAL.

The corporate seal of the Corporation shall comdistmetallic stamp, circular in form, bearingtmcenter the figures and word
“1929, Delaware”, and at the outer edge the nambeoCorporation.

ARTICLE X.

FISCAL YEAR.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin loa first day of January in each year.
ARTICLE XI.

AMENDMENTS.

All by-laws of the Corporation shall be subjecgfteration or repeal, and new by-laws not incoesistvith any provision of the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Cogtimn or any provision of law, may be made, byBloard of Directors at any regular or
special meeting or by the stockholders of the Catpan in accordance with these by-laws. Notwithdtag anything else contained in these
by-laws to the contrary, the affirmative vote o tholders of record of at least 66 2/3% of the dortbvoting power of all the outstanding
stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in regpbereof, voting together as a single class, $dfatequired in order for the stockholders to
adopt, alter, amend, rescind or repeal any by-t#wise Corporation.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Martin R. Benante, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Curtiss-Wright Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 15d — 15(¢e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be



designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 10, 2005
/s/ Martin R. Benante

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Glenn E. Tynan, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Curtiss-Wright Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a — 15(e) and 15d — 15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, patrticularly during the period in which
this quarterly report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be



designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 10, 2005
/sl Glenn E. Tynan

Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Curtiss-Wright Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended March
31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), Martin R. Benante, as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Glenn E. Tynan, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each
hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, that to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ Martin R. Benante

Martin R. Benante
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
May 10, 2005

/sl Glenn E. Tynan
Glenn E. Tynan

Chief Financial Officer
May 10, 2005
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